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The Milton F. Lake House is a cne-storey brick structure
strongly reflecting,in its front facade and its interior
decorative detailing, the symmetrical Georgian and Greek
Revival house designs of the early 19th century.

The front facade, consisting of a portico entrance door with
transom and sidelights and flanked by double-hung windows,
gives expression to the two front rooms ané the wide entrance
hall. FProm a precisely frontal view there is no hint of the
multi-room e1ll which extends to the rear behind the two front
parlors.

Double-pitched rcofs with an 8/12 slope cover the main block,
the ell, and the entrance portico. Originally wood shingled,
the roof was re-shingled with cedar in 1932,and more recently,
with asphalt shingles. The front parlors have fireplaces,
their outside chimneys straddling the ridge. The brick
chimneys terminate in corbeled caps.

The ell extending to the rear, built as a part of the original
house, is three rooms deep. The first two rooms of the ell
wing are bedrooms which were once heated by a back-to-back
fireplace located in the common partition wall. The third

room is & kitchen which has undergone a number of modifications
and is now completaly modernized. Parallel to these three
rooms are secondary spaces, consisting of an open porch off

the front parlors, a dining room and a rear pantry. R

Most of the interior surfaces were plastered, sometimes
directly on brick, sometimes on wood lath. Much of the origl-
nal plaster is intact. Some of the original floors are in
place, though most have been replaced or recovered.

The present plan consists of a parlor, library, three bedrooms,
two bathrooms, dining room, breakfast room, entrance hall and

a sun porch. The latter was added to the west end of the house
and is glazed on three sides.

Modernizations have included new plumbing, electric wiring,
and a heating system with a gas-fired furnace. Access to the
utility-room basement in which the furnace is located is by

a narrow stairway concealed in the bedroom floor by an
inconspicuous trap door floor panel. Two new double-hung
windows have been installed on both sides of the fireplace in
the front parlor (south wall). These windows match the large
front windows in height but are narrower. Frames and trim of
the new windows match the original , providing a beveled
window reveal which widens the opening at the inside face,
presumably to 21low maximum light to pass through the 12-inch

brick walls.
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Another new window has been added between the breakfast room
and the sun porch at the rear of the house. Thig affords a
:pleasing view of the rear gardens and pastureland from the

f breakfast table.

|
'Description {Continued - Page 2}
1

| The entrance portico was missing for a number of years and the

| present one is a reconstruction. Slender wood cclumns nave been
made to match celumns supporting the porch at the rear of the

| pariors. The floor of the porticc is of brick. The narrow
white fascia of the portico roof, as well as the fascia ¢f the
main roof,are without ornamentation.

Always used as a farm house, the Lake-Bzll House has had ths
typical variety of out-buildings through the years. A karn
puilt at the sam® TIme as the house still stands, though it
has heen altered extensively. The original well is still
extant, though the well house has long since heen removed.
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The Lake-Shores Bell House has been changed very little during
its one hundred vyear existence. The basic ell-shape floor
plan has been altered only 2y the 1852 addition of a glass
walled porch on the west leg of tfM¥ ell. In that same year
the open porch in the elbow of the 211 was enclosed using
brick from the milk house.

Cne interior wall was moved in 1932 when Mr. and Mrs. Shores
moved into the house. The east wall of the pantry (see
diagram) was moved four feet further east, making the area
large enough for a breakfast room. Because the house had

been badly misused for a number of years, mcst of the original
flooring had to be replaced when the house was made habitable
in 1922. However, the original flecoring remains in the entry
hall and the north parlcor. The original brick floor of the
kitchen lies three feet helow the present floor which was
raised to the level of the rest of the house.

The Lake-Shores-Bell House is in excellent conditicn due to
the efforts of the present owners, Mr. and Mrs. Bunn Bell.
When Mrs. Bell's parents bought the property in 1932, the
Bell's supervised the restoraticn. Since 1952, Mr. and Mrs.
Ball have resided in the house, Situated just west of the
Prairie Grove Battlefield Park, the Lake-Shores-Bell House
is enhanced by its pastoral setting.
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STATEMENT OF SIGMIFICANGE

The Lake~Shores-3ell House is a2 well presserved sxample of the
one-storey brick farm house of a well-to-deo gentlemen farmer,
statesman, and community leader of the post-Civil War era in
north Arkansas. Though modest in size and architectural
detailing, the house i1s nevertheless nctable for the individ-
uality of its plan, for the deceptively grand scale of its
high ceiling interiors, and, particularly, for the care and
skill with which it has bean rencvated.

Milton FP. Lake came to northwest Arkansas from Kentucky in
‘the late 1860's and purchased a large farm, portions of which
kad been the scene of the Battle of Prairie Grove (Prairie
Grove Battlefield Park is a National Register propertyl). The
precise date of construction is uncertain, though it is thought |
to have started in_l868 and to have continued over a three year
pericd. A granddaughter of Mr. Lake, Mrs. Kathleen Cummins

of Prairie Grove, says her father recalled preparing meals for
the plastering crew when he was 16 years old, which would have
been in 1870. Alexander Hendry, one of the leading carpenter/
contractors in Washington County during this decade, was
invelved in the construction of the Lake House. Hendry was
later to be one of the prime contractors in building the
University Hall at the Arkansas Industrial University, some

| 15 miles away in Payettevilie.

M. F. Lake was a man of considerable political ability, for in
' less than ten vears after coming to Arkansas, hes was a member
of the Arkansas legislature. By 1874 he had been appointed

to the Board of Trustees of the Arkansas Industrial University.
In that same year he was appointed to serve on the University’'s
third building committee. Additionally, he was one of the '
signers of the 1874 Constitution of Arkansas.

The Lake House remained in the family until 1932 when a
dauchter of the builder, Mrs. Ella Barnett, scld it to

Mr. John C. Shores, a retired insurance man from Little Rock,
Arkansas. Mr, Shores did some remodelling in 1934, and

son-in-law, Mr. and Mrs. Bunn Bell.
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Significance (Continued - Page 2)

Modernization of the house by Mr. and Mrs. Bell began in 1952,
and has been painstaking and meticulous. They have attempted
to change as little as possible of the original fabric of the
bu1'1d1ng while incorperating into the houwse the comforts and
conveniences of contemperary life. 1In this respect the house
| can be regarded as a model of adaptive preservation.
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